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ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 14-31)

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . It gets your attention though, doesn't it? Hoo. Now, there's some
times when the gavel doesn't work. I want to welcome all of you to the Lahaina hearing. We're
here to listen to your concerns, your thoughts, and your wishes, and we're happy to be here. And
to introduce the Members this evening I'd like to call upon your Councilmember Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha. Good evening, everyone. Thank you. Great Lahaina, great
turnout, West Maui. Thank you and let me start on this end here. We have Ms. Stacy Crivello of
Molokai. And Mr. Riki Hokama for Lanai. And Council Chairwoman Gladys Baisa,
Upcountry.
And Chair of the Budget and Finance Committee Mike White,
Paia/Haiku/Makawao, and then of course, myself, Elle Cochran, West Maui. Next to me here is
Don Couch, South Maui. And we have assorted Staff members here with Jordan Molina,
Michele Yoshimura, Clarita, Rayna, Arthur, Troy. And then from my office, my wonderful staff
there, Chelton Miyazono, more wonderful over here, and Sarah Pajimola. So if you call my
office you're probably be speaking to one of the two of them. And everyone, thank you for
being here again. Looking forward to hearing your wishes as Mr. White mentioned, we are here
to grant your wishes.
CHAIR WHITE: I didn't say "grant".
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hear, hear their wishes.
CHAIR WHITE: Although we, I'm sure we will do a lot of granting. But anyway, without further ado,
we'll get started with our testimony. And as we have done in the past, we allow the young, the
young members of the community and the elder members of the community to go first. So we
will start off with Pono Kahae. And Pono brought his cheering section.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .
MR. KAHAE: Good evening, Maui Council. My name is Pono Kahae. I'm from the West Maui Boys
and Girls Club. I'm 12 years old. I've been going to Lahaina Boys and Girls Club since I was
eight. When I first came to the Club, I wasn't the person I am today. I got mad a lot; I wasn't
setting a good example for the little kids. I made bad choices, yelled a lot, and kept on getting in
trouble from the staff. I was always in the staff office talking about me setting good examples
but I really didn't care much back then. It took me a while but I realized that other kids were
looking up to me. Then I told myself that I should just start setting good examples for these little
kids. I started being a good person when I... and caring about how I looked to others and I
realized that people and kids started recognizing me as a leader. That's when I started helping
the Club fundraise, go on field trips, and clean up around the Club. Then they rewarded me for
being a leader. Since then, I was always doing good. Now I'm setting good examples for the
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little kids at Lahaina Boys and Girls Club. I've been helping my cousin who's a staff also, Kona
Medeiros, with sports such as football, dodge ball, and kickball. Ever since I have changed my
ways, I now notice that I've been getting good, better grades in school, and I have been
participating in more club activities. My cousin
and Chance have been following in my
footsteps. I feel great when I think about my Club family and I don't want to let them down.
That is why I'm here today. Thank you, Maui Council, for supporting me and my Club.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Pono. Our next testifier is Laiku Kaneakua and they will be followed by
Keale Carbajal.
MS. KANEAKUA: Good evening, Maui Council. My name is Laiku Kaneakua and I'm from the West
Maui Lahaina Boys and Girls Club. I'm thirteen years old and I've been going to the Boys and
Girls Club for about six years now. I moved to Molokai...I moved here from Molokai when I
was about eight years old. We moved here because there wasn't good jobs for my parents. It
was hard for them to find jobs. When we first moved here, it was kind of different because
Molokai and Maui are two very different islands and people's lifestyles are very different. A
year after we moved here, I got a phone call saying my hanai dad passed away. It was very sad
for us. It was hard for us. When I first came to the Club, I was really shy. I didn't know a lot of
people. I was a bad person. I was making bad examples. I was getting into trouble a lot. I felt
like I was a new girl going to a new school, most people didn't like that. The Boys and Girls
Club is like a second home to me. Whenever I come to the Club I feel safe. I feel like I'm at
home. I like coming to the Club because I can have fun, spend time with my friends and my
staffs. Another reason why I like coming to the Boys and Girls Club is because I learn how to
respect people, how to trust, and how to be honest. It's not easy getting that. You give and you
get return. The Boys and Girls Club is very fun and exciting. It has a lot of opportunities for
you. It helped me in a lot things. It helped me get through a lot things. The Boys and Girls Club
has opened a new future for me. When I grow up, I want to be a lot of things. In 2012, my hanai
brother passed away in a car accident right before Christmas. He was only 22, 21 years old. It
was super hard for us, but because of the Boys and Girls Club, they have helped me get through
all those hard things. I've been struggling through a lot of things because a lot of people had
passed away and my dad has got cancer now. My dad's mom's husband passed away on
Monday. His wife passed away. His sister passed away a month before her and her husband has
passed away a month before him so it's been hard because I've been losing my family nowadays.
The Club is really fun. The Club...
CHAIR WHITE: Just relax. You're doing fine.
MS. KANEAKUA: I don't know what I would do without the Club. The Club has helped me come off
of the streets. Growing up watching everybody doing drugs around you, watching everybody
dying around you, watching everybody making bad influences is really hard but because of the
Club I have learned to look beyond those things. I've become a better person because of the
Club -4
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. KANEAKUA: --I'm the person who I am now. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Laiku. And Keale will be followed by Danae Marin or Marin.
MR. CARBAJAL: Aloha Maui County...aloha Maui County, aloha Maui County Council. My name is
Keale Carbajal. I'm nine years old. Before I came...before I was a member at the...before I was
a member, I would remember seeing my brother at the Club. I would always try to get into the
Club. I felt really shy the first day I came here, like no one would want to talk to me. I found a
friend here, I found a friend here and we had so much fun. He is still my best friend today
this...to this day. I like that my Club staff help me out when I am sad. They don't stop and tell
me to wait when I need help. They always help me. I like all the fun things that we're allowed
to do at the Club. I love field trips. My most favorite is camping in Hana with all my friends
and staff. Thank you for listening to me talk about my Club and thank you for supporting the
Lahaina Boys and Girls Club. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Keale. And Danae will be followed by May Fujiwara.
MS. MARIN: Aloha and good evening, ladies and gentlemen of the County Council and everyone here.
My name is Danae Marin. I'm the Club Director of the Lahaina Clubhouse, and I've been there
for five years now. And I just want to say a little bit about each of our speakers tonight. When I
met Kupono, he did not go by his name. He actually wanted to be called by the name of a rapper
who was popular at the time. We have a lot of really good stories about his choices and where
they've led him. He was, like he said, he was an angry guy, and within three years' time he's
gone from that to captain of his football team, getting straight A's in school. Same thing with
Laiku. She also had her difficulties and continues to, but her message is the same. They go from
something that can be tragic to focusing on what's positive. Both of those two, young men and
young woman, they, they're first language is actually Hawaiian, so for them to get up and speak
in English, it means a lot, and it's something that they have to work really hard at so I'm very
proud of them, as well, as Keale, and he's been actually coming around the Club and I've known
him since he was six years old, and he's following in his brother's footsteps and he too, gets very
good grades in school. So basically, my kids matter. They're all my kids. They have supporters
here and fellow club mates here tonight as well, and they're starting to realize what it takes to
become productive, successful, and I'm proud of them for holding their heads high with
integrity, and that's what they learn at the clubhouse. My team matters. My staff matter.
There's things that we go through here in West Maui such as the high cost of living. All of my
staff have second jobs to make ends meet. We have had a high amount of turnover. Turnover
has hurt us. It's hurt the staff; it's hurt the kids. All of their messages are very similar. They
talk about their staff. They don't come up here and say they love the Club because of the pool
table, because of the TV. They talk about the people, their friends, the staff, the connections that
they're making, and that's what means the most. More staff means that there are more kids to
have opportunities that can stand up and share their stories about how their lives are changing.
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The kids have to make the choices. We're just there to lead them and guide them, and to show
them what we see from day one. They come into the door and we treat them the same from day
one that they are successful, they are worth it, and that there is something out there for them that
they can be great at. Similar, with Laiku, she's now a All-Star drummer. She's done three live
performances. She's part of a corps. She's an accomplished singer, very talented. Those are
things she had never done before she walked into the clubhouse. And it's hard for them to brag
about it but, you know, I'm here to do that for them. And they're an investment, they truly are,
these kids are. Any time that I want to invest in something, I want to see -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. MARIN: --a return. If you do invest in them, which you have, and I'm very grateful for, you will
see return, and you can see return every single day with what we do with them. It's due to the
positive relationships that they're still here, and it's thanks to your relationship with us. I thank
you all from the bottom of my heart for supporting what we have and please do continue to do
so. Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Danae. May will be followed by Anita Yamafuji.
MS. FUJIWARA: Before I start, I want to commend Gregg Lundberg, if he's here, for his huge gang
that's here, the only reason he outnumbers our seniors is because our seniors don't drive at night.
And also, they have a hard time, you know, in the evening walking around. Anyway, good
evening, Council Chair Baisa, Mike White, and the rest of the Council members. My name is
May Fujiwara. I am speaking on behalf of our many Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizen Club
members who are here in their hot pink shirts. I would like for them to stand and be recognized.
Thank you, Council members, for your many years of support and we look forward to your
continued support of programs affecting our senior population. These programs greatly enhance
the lives of our seniors and keep us independent, as independent as possible. Because of
increased operational costs, insurance, utilities, salary adjustments, a 5 percent in funding for the
MEO programs will be greatly appreciated. MEO transportation affects many of us, the elderly,
the youth, and those in between. Seniors rely on MEO to transport us to our monthly club
meetings, Senior Fair, shopping, and other activities. Their buses transport clients to the dialysis
centers where they receive life sustaining treatments. They transport youngsters to the Boys and
Girls Club where they receive academic help and participate in recreational activities afterschool
while their parents are still at work. They provide transportation for persons with disabilities,
low income or economically challenged individuals to get to and from their place of
employment. Please continue to fund the Head Start, afterschool, and summer programs which
allow parents who are working or in school to have three hours of additional care after the
Federal Head Start program ends each day. Continue to fund the following programs also: the
Rental Assistance Program that provides rental and/or deposit assistance for those who are about
to become homeless. Support the Enlace Hispano Program to help our fast-growing Hispanic
community assimilate into our society by providing education, translation, and resources for
Hispanics. And of course, please continue to fund our Boat Day entertainers. This year there'll
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be over 50 boats coming into Lahaina Harbor and our musicians and musicians need new strings
for their ukuleles and guitars, and our uniforms are getting kind of faded and frayed after over 15
years. We've been entertaining at the Harbor for over 15 years and lot of the passengers are
repeat travelers to Maui and they always tell us that they remember us being at the Harbor and
how much they appreciate our greeting them with Hawaiian music and dance, and also with the
flowers and leis as they disembark from their tenders. Some of 'em, of course, come and dance
with us too, and lot of 'ern take pictures. We ask you to support the Lahaina Restoration
Foundation's request for $750,000 to improve the library park.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. FUJIWARA: If you pass by there, you will notice that they have some taro already growing in the
front and it's going to be beautiful, I think, too. And thank you for allowing me to testify, and of
course, if George were here, he'd say, where's my sidewalk? Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, May. Before we go to the next testifier...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, and ladies and gentlemen, let me introduce
Councilmember Don Guzman, representing Kahului, Don Guzman. And I also want to...and
thank you, May, for the wonderful food this evening also, and always, your participation.
Mahalo to the seniors and you. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next is Anita Yamafuji followed Vivian Ichiki.
MS. YAMAFUJI: Good evening...Council White, Council Chair Mike, members of the Council. My
name is Anita Yamafuji, member of the Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizen. As our earlier speaker
said, please continue to fund the many worthwhile programs run by MEO. They do a great
service to our community in taking on those various program. Of course, a great concern for me,
and by many of our seniors is transportation. Because of transportation, MEO transportation, I
don't have to rely on my children, friends, and neighbors to take me to medical appointments and
to take me shopping. I am most impressed with MEO paratransit service. Because of my
disability, I can no longer drive so the paratransit service...serve me to take...take me to many
medical appointments here in Lahaina and on the other side of the island. The drivers are always
kind and helpful. I know that I can be grouchy sometimes, especially when I'm in pain or don't
feel well, but the drivers just smile and help me anyway. In addition to the other programs, the
speaker before me asked support...please continue to fund a business development center. This
program provides loans and business classes especially those wishing to start their own
businesses. These clients learn how to research information and how, how to successfully begin
their own businesses. I am one of the entertainers of the Boat Days in Lahaina Harbor. Please
continue to fund, fund for this worthwhile program. One of our uniforms which was bright and
red that had been over 15 years ago has now turned to pink. The Boat Days passengers seems to
enjoy our singing and dancing. They stop and take lots of pictures. Thank you again for your
hard work and allowing me to testify.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Anita. Vivian will be followed by Kurt Chichioco.
MS. ICHIKI: Aloha, Council Chair Michael White and Members of the Council. Thank you for
allowing me to testify. My name is Vivian Ichiki. I am an active, involved member of the
Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens Club and have been a member for the last about thirty years.
Please continue to fund MEO transportation and give them a raise, if possible. The drivers are
always courteous and helpful, helping us old folks get on and off the bus, and sometimes
carrying our bags on and off the bus. MEO transportation is our lifeline to the outside world.
With MEO transportation, our club members, who can no longer drive, would be vegetating at
home just sitting at home watching TV. Because of MEO transportation we are able to attend
important events like this Budget hearing, and to attend our monthly meetings where we can
listen to speakers on important topics that affect us and be able to socialize with our friends, and
to attend the nutrition programs where we can get well-balanced meals. Please continue to fund
MEO transportation. MEO transportation not only provides seniors with transportation, but also
provides transportation for school-age children to attend their various activities afterschool
which is a great help to parents who work and cannot be home when their children get out of
school or cannot drive them to these afterschool activities. Please continue to fund the Kahi
Kamalii program. MEO provides support for low income families with infants and toddlers with
tuition money. We all know how expensive childcare is and MEO has been subsidizing this
program for parents who are unable to come up with copayment for this program. Again, thank
you for allowing me to testify. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Vivian. Kurt, Kurt is the next one up and he'll be followed by Ransom
Watanabe.
MR. CHICHIOCO: Hello. Hello, my name is Kurt Chichioco. I have been attending Hui Malama
Learning Center for two years. I originally started attending Hui Malama because I had to leave
my last school. The reason I am still attending Hui Malama is that I have been successful and I
enjoy learning about and working...wait, learning about and working to restore and help nature.
Hui Malama is important to me because we are trying to perpetuate the Hawaiian culture. We
get to experience things like make pa'i 'ai which is what you get when you pound kalo. We do
this...we do everything in the process from beginning to end. We learn how to make compost
from...for the lo'i and we even dig up our own lo'i. We make the wai or waterway to help the
water from the river flow to the lo'i. We planted different varieties of kalo and we even make
our own poi pounders and boards. When the kalo is ready to harvest we learn to, the proper way
to pull the kalo without breaking the corm. We clean the kalo, cut the stalk or huh to save to
replant and save the leaves to cook. We steam the kalo and then pound it into pa'i 'ai then we
eat it or take it home to share with our family. My favorite part of this process is pounding the
kalo because I get to feed my family. When I make pa'i 'ai, I take it home for my mom. We
learned about the story of Haloa and how we are all connected and if you take care of other
people, they will take care of you. Haloa, the first Hawaiian who took care of his older brother,
Haloanakalaukapalili, the first kalo. So the older brother always provided food for the younger
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brother. My mom takes care of me so when I bring home pa‘i ai for her that's one way I can
take care of her. The most important thing I have learned from Hui Malama is how we are all
connected. At Hui Malama we all work together as one, helping people in the community with
their farms and projects and those people mentor us in math, science, and agriculture. At school
we study, work, and eat together. We even celebrate birthdays and holidays together. I am very
thankful to be connected with everyone. Thank you for supporting our school and making it
possible for me to experience connection. Your support will help other students to have the
same positive experience as me in the future.
CHAIR WHITE: Good job, Kurt. And Ransom will be followed by Jared Gifford.
MR. WATANABE: Hello. My name is Ransom Watanabe and I'm a high school student attending Hui
Malama Learning Center. I came to Hui Malama due to be homeschooled from sixth grade to
my sophomore year. I didn't have enough credits to enter public school so Hui Malama was my
next choice because I'm able to get my GED. Hui Malama has become very important for me
more so than I would have ever imagined. For me, it's become more than just a place to learn.
It's become a place at which I feel comfortable. I've learned so many things from the teachers
and various mentors, both at school and on excursions, including self-sufficiency and Hawaiian
culture and history. Growing and harvesting kalo, pounding pa'i 'ai, learning about all the native
and, native and invasive plant life on Maui, all these things that we are exposed to and taught
about are things that you can't really get from other schools. While a good portion of Hui
Malama's curriculum is centered on Hawaiian culture and agriculture work, we also learn the
business side of life as well. Finances, resumes, applications, and colleges were things I never
really seriously thought about or tried to learn about. I never had the drive or motivation to. Hui
Malama teaches these things and solely prepares you for looking for jobs, understanding what
qualifications are needed for each job, paying taxes and bills, and working on skills you'll need
later in life. Put simply, I feel that Hui Malama is an amazing school. The nicest thing I like
about the school is how close the teachers and students become. Because of our small school,
everyone becomes much closer than in a public school where the student body greatly
outnumbers the teachers. At Hui Malama, the students are with the teachers all day long. They
not only teach us in class, but they eat meals with us, and take us on excursions, and to
internships and special events. This creates a much more relaxed and comfortable environment
while still retaining proper education. It all comes together so well and I'm happy I can be a part
of it. I would like to sincerely thank you for supporting Hui Malama. Hui Malama wouldn't be
where it is today without your help. Your support truly means a lot to me and to everyone at the
school and I hope you continue to support us in the future.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ransom. Jared will be followed by Nicola Gifford.
MR. GIFFORD: Hello. My name is Jared Gifford. I'm a middle school student and I started coming to
Hui Malama this year. The reason I am at Hui Malama is that I didn't do well in public school. I
used to get into trouble and get suspended for disobeying teachers. But now that I am at Hui
Malama, I am listening to teachers, staying in school, and passing all of my classes. Hui Malama
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is important to me because it's a way for me to learn outdoors doing hands-on projects. We
learn about different kinds of science, the Earth, moon phases, plants, communities, and the
history of Maui. My favorite experiment was when we made crystals out of sugar with Kumu
Kevin. It was a fun way to learn how to change something from the one form of matter to
another. I enjoy STEM class with Kumu Kevin because it's always interesting and fun. I like
what we are doing at Hui Malama because I like learning culinary, and helping animals and
plants species, people, and the land. Doing these things will help me in the future. By learning
about gardening, I can grow my own food and know that the vegetables I am feeding my family
are fresh. By learning culinary, I can cook for my family, friends, and the community. The
nicest thing I can say about Hui Malama is that all of the teachers care about us. They never
leave us out of the conversation and they care about all of us equally. Thank you for supporting
Hui Malama.
CHAIR 'WHITE: Thank you, Jared. Nicola Gifford is next and she'll be followed by Tamara Tanaka.
MS. GIFFORD: Thank you, Council members, for having this meeting tonight. My name is Nicola
Gifford and the proud mother of a student, Jared, who was just up here. I was so happy to finally
find a school for Jared that would work with his personality. After struggling through preschool
through sixth grade, always being moved on to the next, even if not grasping the work. After
dealing with the same phone calls, I took a visit to Hui Malama. Now this is not a school for bad
kids; it is a school with a different learning style. Jared loves to be outside and with all the other
activities and environmental work they do, learning is fun. I do have two other 'children, one
attending sophomore at Baldwin, and a sixth grader at Iao, both who are doing very well. Hui
Malama is a needed school for those children who public classrooms are not working for them. I
hope proper funding can make these exceptional teachers and families of children who need this
school available for all. I hope this Budget and Finance Committee will invest in the future of
Hui Malama Learning Center and the work they do for the children of our future. Thank you so
much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Nicola. And Tamara Tanaka will be followed by Angie Wideman.
MS. TANAKA: Aloha. My name is Tamara Tanaka and I'm the lead academic instructor at Hui
Malama Learning Center in Wailuku. I teach language and visual arts, plan excursions and the
daily teaching schedule, support the other teaching staff, and yes, I still drive the school bus, but
not as often as I did last year. My time here at Hui Malama has been filled with many firsts. For
people who know my family or know where my high school alma mater is they are surprised to
hear about some of these firsts, like working in the lo'i kalo, making pa'i 'ai, and learning at
places like Honokohau, which is now my favorite place on Maui. It's official; I posted it on
Facebook; Honokohau is my favorite place on Maui. Our most recent trip to Honokohau
provided me with one of the rare days in which I didn't have to correct students and was able to
reflect more on why I do what I do even when it's not easy. If you had been with us on the
excursion you would not believe that Jared, who is diligently cleaning kalo and cutting huli by
himself, had six months ago been yelling at me in the middle of Uncle Bobby Pahia's lo'i kalo in
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Waikapu, waving his sickle, refusing to go on a timeout, and then saying that even if I called his
mother he would not go home. Nor would you believe me if you saw Kurt talking story with
Uncle Willie Wood and carrying and playing with his baby then happily joking with other boys
as they pulled kalo. You wouldn't believe that at the same time last year he didn't really have
many people with whom he could communicate well or with whom he could connect. And if
you had seen Ransom laughing everywhere from in the bus, to the lo'i, to the lunch table and
with everyone, you would never have guessed that there was a period during his five years of
home schooling in which he didn't really interact with other people his age. And now, he is
active in school, volunteering to stay extra to help with events, and involved in sports and dance
outside of school. I have been able to witness firsthand how the educational and social growth of
these students during school has extended into extracurricular activities, and voluntary job
shadowing, and unpaid internships. These students are why, even though my fellow coworkers
and I joke that we are way more than a school and we are way tired every day, we are proud to
be a part of the Hui Malama ohana and the reason that we are so grateful for your continued
support. Uncle Skippy Hau from DLNR told our students when he was teaching them about the
hihiwai and opae that it's important to think small, not big. Take care of the hihiwai and opae
when they're small then they'll grow to be big and will feed...they'll feel your opu. When he
and I talked one-on-one after a particularly hard day for me, he told me that the same thing goes
for our students. We teach them to do good things now and be good to themselves and others,
and we're not only changing them, but we're changing every person that they do good for in the
future. So thank you, Council members, and everyone in the community for helping us to make
a positive impact on the youth and the future of Maui.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Tamara. Angie will be followed by Les Potts.
MS. WIDEMAN: Good evening, Council members. My name is Angie Wideman and I'm here to
testify on behalf of Best Buddies, a program that partners students with intellectual and
developmental disabilities with students without to help foster inclusion in our schools, stop
bullying, and encourage volunteerism in our youth. A program like this wasn't available when
my younger brother was in school. Nathan has cerebral palsy and we were both bullied to the
point that my parents actually decided to relocate to a town about 45 minutes away. And I
remember, once we moved, the impact that the first friend Nathan ever had on his life, and
actually to this day, twenty-something years later. That man still comes and visits my brother
and my family when he's in town. So Best Buddies has a very personal meaning to me and I'm
just requesting that the Council support the Mayor's Budget request for Best Buddies, which is
the same amount as last year, and inform you actually about a new initiative that Best Buddies is
working on with Lahainaluna High School to help get some of the students in their special
education program employed at the Hyatt. And their first career day is actually going to be
May 9thand we're working on a partnership with the Hyatt to get some of those students after
graduation employed in the hospitality. So thank you guys so much for the opportunity to speak
this evening.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Angie. And Les will be followed by Sara Foley.
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MR. POTTS: Chair Baisa, Council members, my name's Les Potts. I'm the caretaker of about seven
miles of shoreline out there from Honolua Bay out past the Blowhole and there's about
3,000 acres above that that's part of the Makai Conservation area that kind of comes into my
responsibility. So every year I ask you for help in supporting Community Work Day which has
now changed their name to Malama Maui Nui. They do the most for me. They get me one
roll-off dumpster a month. They pick up all the appliances and tires that I found and stuff like
that. And I think they really are the organization that takes care of ..keeps Maui clean more than
anybody else. This year I'd also like to plug the Puu Kukui Watershed crew. They take care of
about 8,000 acres of our watershed which provides most of the water for West Maui and
they...I'm always calling on them for help down at makai side too, like coming up for our Earth
Day cleanup, they're going to be digging a bunch of holes for me for planting, planting native
plants out on Lipoa. So and I do believe they could be an integral part of the management of
Honolua in the future when it turns over to State, we're not really sure what's going to happen
yet. Anyway, I'll be brief Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for what you do, Les. Sara Foley will be followed by Janice Montle. I'm
not sure I'm pronouncing that right.
MS. FOLEY: Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha.
MS. FOLEY: I'm a board member of Maui Friends of the Library and I really do thank you for the
opportunity to speak today on the proposed Budget. I want to encourage your support for the
$750,000 Capital grant under Parks and Recreation to the Lahaina Restoration Foundation. This
proposed grant will fund the Lahaina Harborfront improvement project that includes
re-landscaping the lawn on the Front Street-side of the Lahaina Public Library. This project will
make the harbor area more pedestrian and user-friendly for hundreds of residents and visitors
from throughout the County who use it for travel and recreation. But more importantly, the
project will extend the educational mission of both the Lahaina Restoration Foundation and the
Lahaina Public Library by honoring the rich history of this area. The library lawn will include a
taro patch, stabilized rock wall, native shade trees, and interpretive plaques that tell the story of
early Maui. People who pass this area will be able to sit down on the lawn and read a book,
enjoy the shade, and learn about this historic place. Supporting this project is an excellent and
very, very visible use of our taxpayer dollars. So thank you and I hope you stick that 750,000
and make sure it stays in there so we get this done. Thanks a lot.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Sara. Janice will be followed by Craig Reynolds.
MS. MONTLE: Good evening, Council members, and thank you for the opportunity to speak. My
name is Janice Montle. I live in San Diego and for the past 11 years I've been a timeshare owner
at Westin Kaanapali Ocean Resort Villas. For the past two years, I've been a member of the
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board which has given me an opportunity to get a much greater understanding of the finances
and budgetary challenges of the resort. It's also given me an opportunity to appreciate much
more the contribution that the Westin Villas make to the community here in Maui, both in terms
of tangible contributions to organizations and by sponsoring and participating in many
community events. For example, when I checked into my room today, this was the first thing I
saw, a flyer encouraging guests and owners to participate in the upcoming Charity Walk for the
Visitors Association. As part of that we're very proud of our resort and of the outstanding
managers and associates that work there. I'd like to ask all of the members of the Westin Villa
family to stand and be recognized because we do have a very good turnout, as usual, tonight. It's
a great organization and they make it a great place for us to stay as owners. Since buying my
timeshare here on Maui this has been my go-to vacation place. I come here several times a year,
often bringing friends and extended family who have never been to Maui before. That wasn't
always the case for me. I lived on the East coast for 50 years and I never came to Hawaii. I
always went to the Caribbean, to St. John, or St. Martin, or Aruba, or whatever. When I moved
to San Diego, I actually did a timeshare exchange one year and came to the Westin Villas. I got
hooked, bought one, bought another one, and I've never been back to the Caribbean again. In
fact, when friends in San Diego talk about planning a vacation in the Caribbean, I push back on
them and say, why would you do that, spend the time and money to go to the east when you can
come to Maui much quicker and it has a lot more going for it. So as a timeshare owner here I
think most of us are your most loyal, committed visitors. We return often. We stay longer and
we bring more people with us. I think we're one of your best promoters of Maui tourism that
there is. Now I fully understand that enjoying Maui comes with a price and I'm happy to do my
part in supporting the local economy here. This means spending money at your beautiful golf
courses, eating in your great restaurants, and doing a good piece of my Christmas shopping, gift
shopping, every year when I come back here in early December. I can tell you the smiles on the
face of the shop owners and the craft sellers near our resort tell me that I really am supporting the
local economy. Of course that economic contribution also includes -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. MONTLE: --the taxes that I pay, the General Excise Tax, the Timeshare Occupancy Tax, and the
Property Tax which is now $15.55...50 cents per thousand. This brings me kind of back to
where I began talking about the annual budgeting process. The Mayor's proposal calls for a
6.5 percent increase in timeshare rates for 2015. That represents more than a dollar increase in a
single year which is almost double the next category, the hotels. In addition, our valuation, as
you know, has increased which means we're facing an overall 12 percent increase in Property
Tax rates, which for the two resorts is close $1 million increase in a single year. It also means
that the difference what we pay as a timeshare resort versus the hotels will now be about
$4 million for a single year for the two resorts. So as a board member, I have a real concern
about how much our owners are going to be willing to pay -MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
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MS. MONTLE: --in increased owner fees. So I would...
CHAIR WHITE: You'll need to provide some concluding thoughts.
MS. MONTLE: Okay. So I would ask as you consider your 2015 budgetary considerations that you
consider what I've said and perhaps we can come to a more positive outcome in what is
becoming increasingly a burdensome issue for us. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, Janice. Craig will be followed by Christine Scharein.
MR. REYNOLDS: Council members, my name is Craig Reynolds. I became a Maui property owner in
2004 with a timeshare at Kaanapali Ocean Resort Villas, followed by acquiring a condominium
unit at the Ridge Villas in Kapalua in 2006. I'm currently on the board of each of my
homeowners associations. I first came to these islands in 1978, not as a tourist but as an
employee, engaged by a Honolulu planning firm. Our team's project was to develop a 20-year
Master Plan for recreational needs for each of the counties. An essential part of that year-long
project while working side-by-side with local colleagues and with my team at the State
Department required learning and appreciating the many cultures and their impact on the process
and needs. With that understanding of culture gained many years ago, I have since been able to
put that experience to beneficial use in working with many diverse groups procuring billions of
dollars for financing capital improvement needs for public schools and recreational venues. And
although I may not live full-time in Maui that understanding of giving back is a core value of
mine and many others that have the ability and have chosen to share their resources. Without the
unique opportunity and economical arrangement provided by timeshare ownership my family
and over 14,000 other families at KOR may not have been able to afford our regular excursions
to our place of choice and share our gifts with the local community. Because these families
consider this island a home-away-from-home the positive impact of the timeshare owners,
ownership in this island, unlike transient guests, guarantee a return year after year as we greet,
patronize, celebrate, and nurture relationships with our local ohana. For those that care of our
home in Kaanapali, the stores in Lahaina, Napali [sic], Kahala [sic], where we purchase our
groceries, those we join with to clean our beaches and restore our valleys, the artisans of the
Upcountry whose products decorate our local and mainland homes, we work with to improve
lives. I am just one of this expanded ohana who generously donates available time, energy, and
resources to better our island home and its economy. I am proud of the positive accolades and
acknowledgements my association has received on our work throughout the community. Like
yourselves, I make regular tax contributions to the County, but perhaps unlike your situation, I
also pay a Timeshare Occupancy Tax of 7.25 percent, and Timeshare Property Tax proposed to
increase under the Mayor's plan to $16.56 per $1,000 of valuation. That is five times the tax rate
of that of a single family resident and two and half times that of a condominium owner and has
increased over 100 percent in the past decade. I was at this hearing one year ago when our board
members again rehashed the accounting of this ongoing, increasingly unfair tax burden. They
implored you to consider our plight as a class of nonvoting property owners that are being taxed
at a far greater rate than our residence owners.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. REYNOLDS: And again, this year we see our tax rate proposed to be increased disproportionally
higher. By this we have seen no end or willingness to compromise this unfair, unsustainable,
and discriminatory practice of taxing without representation and targeting nonresident owners.
Council, I ask you to pursue a more fair and equitable tax strategy for achieving the revenue
objectives of the County. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Craig. And Christine will be followed by Leesa Valencia.
MS. SCHAREIN: Aloha and good evening, Council members. I'm Chris Scharein or Scharein
whichever way you want to pronounce it, and I'm the president of the USTA Maui District
Tennis Association. And it's all good to...it's good to see everybody here tonight. Many of you
know me as the representative for the tennis community, but I want you to also know that my
interest and involvement is growing more and more focusing on the biggest picture, specifically
all of Park and Recreation activities. But specifically for tonight, tennis is a sport that gives back
to our community and as I had shared with the Council a couple months back, we had a number
of key events that were coming here to Maui. The first in January was a professional
tournament, the Challenger, and at that event we invited all of the local schools on the West Side
to partake in tennis clinics. There were 400 kids who participated in these clinics throughout the
week. Those kids are our future in tennis. This weekend, we're having a mixed invitational that
represent 17 sections in the United States. Seven hundred players and their families will be
coming here to Maui and they will be supporting our economy. We've estimated that their being
here will contribute $1 million to the Maui community. That being said, I look to this
Administration to focus on making our County the best it can be when it comes to our Parks and
Recreation facilities. I want you to allocate the necessary funds to Parks and Recreation to
provide and build new, repair, maintain, keep safe the facilities our community uses during their
leisure time and that are essential for growing the community. I think we're all motivated to
make it happen and working together motivates me and the community to stay involved. So that
being said, I also want to comment that I appreciate Brianne Savage's reminder to me that there
was this meeting, and again, would ask that you support the recommendations that Maui Parks
and Recreation made for their Budget increases for 2015. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Christine. Leesa Valencia, oh, there you are. She'll be followed by Jeff
Ferguson.
MS. VALENCIA: Good evening, Council members. I'm here to thank you for funding the Lahaina
Head Start program. Specifically from the time noon to 3:00 p.m., the County funds help to this
program to stay open after the Federal funding ends. Now this is pretty critical for the families
here in Lahaina because it would be a logistical nightmare to have to leave. our jobs at noon, pick
up the child, and shuttle them to another daycare facility. The preschool options that we have in
Lahaina are very limited. The cheapest is $560 a month and it ranges all the way up to $850 a
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month. Now for the families that use Lahaina Head Start program this is just not in our budget,
not at all, and to do some sort of afterschool program would be considered part-time and the
schools have opportunities for that but it's still in the 3 and $400 range. So what would happen
is one of the parents would have to stay home and that not only increases the burden of daycare
expenses, but now we're losing income to pay for other critical, financial expenses that we have.
The other important part about funding Lahaina Head Start is that it's an opportunity of a
partnership for the DOE program to allow some of the special needs children to, to be in...it's
like a pseudo mainstream program. So these special needs kids are a little bit above...they're a
little bit higher functioning than the special education preschool programs in the public schools
and they need to be able to be exposed to typical children to increase their speech and their social
skills. So the MEO program partners with the DOE and allows for that. If the funding were to
go away, there isn't another opportunity right now in Lahaina for these children, these little bit
higher functioning children to have the same exposure. So thank you very much for continuing
to fund the program and I hope that it continues to stay in the Budget in the future.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, Leesa. Jeff Ferguson will be followed by Tamara Paltin.
MR. FERGUSON: Aloha -CHAIR WHITE: Aloha.
MR. FERGUSON: --Mike White and fellow members of the Council. My name's Jeff Ferguson. I'm
with the Maui Grown Coffee Company Store. I'm a board member of the Maui Coffee
Association. We want to thank you for your support of the Maui Coffee Association through the
Farm Bureau and as a result of that we have been able to do events out in Hana. We did an event
on Molokai with Coffees of Hawaii. We did an event an event on Lanai and we represent the
coffee industry. We help and try and support, and mentor small coffee growers. If you want to
plant 12 coffee trees in Launiupoko, hey, we're here to help you. Maui coffee has acquired a
reputation worldwide. Starbucks is going to start serving some Maui coffee. Island Air serves
Maui coffee. Japan Airlines serves Maui coffee in their business class. And every time Maui
coffee is in contact with somebody they have a positive experience. This is a good experience
for Maui. We don't want to take anything away from our brothers and sisters in Kona but we
want to start getting it in people's minds that they grow coffee on Maui, let's come to Maui and
have the coffee experience. So we appreciate your continued support of the small coffee grower.
The biggest threat we have is, right now, the tiny red fire ant. If that gets established in Maui it's
going to threaten all of our agriculture and also the, the watershed. And when the SB 2347 failed
to pass that can affect us and so we'd appreciate your support in that bill as well. That helps
Maui coffee and will help Maui County. So thank you for your support.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And following Tamara Paltin we'll take a quick, about a five-minute
break.
MS. PALTIN: Aloha Council. Thank you for coming to West Maui to hear our testimony. I don't have
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anything specific prepared today but I just wanted to say couple of issues on my radar. To
second what Les Potts says, I fully support Malama Maui Nui and the Puu Kukui Watershed
crew. They do a lot for us here in West Maui. I'm a little bit concerned about the 6.5 percent
across the board Property Tax increase. I think that if we, as the County, are not generating that
revenue I don't...I think we need to look within ourselves, whether it be the Mayor's staff or the
Council staff to balance it out instead of just going straight to raising taxes. I mean, with the
Property Tax increase combined with, like, the fee hikes too, it's going to be quite a strain on
those of us that aren't in the, like, the $100,000 salary range and are just barely making it right
now. It's, it's going to be a hardship on a lot of people. Aside from that, another issue that I'm
concerned about, and I'm not sure if you have it within your power to do anything about, is our
County jet ski operators. We've been providing a service, and I'm speaking as a private citizen,
we've been providing a service to the County for about between 10 and 12 years for free that
County of Oahu and County...or City and County of Honolulu and County of Kauai get paid for.
Every time you go out on jet ski call you're risking your...you have a lot more risk to your life,
wear and tear on your body and responsibility. And Oahu and Kauai pay for jet ski operators
$2.50 an hour for two operators per jet ski. Here on Maui, we've provided that service since we
went on the 911 system in 2002 and it's been completely volunteer. So if you look at it that way,
County lifeguard, ocean lifeguards who are jet ski operators have donated over $1 million-worth
of value, gotten hurt, and to this day are not compensated in line with what other jurisdictions are
compensated. And I think that if you want that service that you should pay for the service. We
don't ask our firefighters to drive the truck for volunteer. Jet ski operators are trained to not only
operate the ski but also pick up dead bodies or whatever have you while operating the ski. You
don't ask a firefighter to drive the truck and put out a fire at the same time. A lot of times we're
understaffed so while we're monitoring seven to eight miles of coastline, the beach that is our
priority is being short a person. So one person there and one person up three, four miles down
the coast and it's just -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. PALTIN: --not an equitable situation. So I just ask that at least respect that.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Tamara. And we'll be in recess for five minutes. . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

7:05 P.M.

RECONVENE:

7:13 P.M.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, please have your seats. We're gonna get going. Our next
testifier is Moya Blondel, followed by Susan Baillie. Moya Blondel.
MS. BLONDEL: Aloha, good evening, ladies and gentlemen, Members of the Council. I just would
like to speak on behalf of the parents of the MEO Head Start Lahaina and share with you tonight
how much we appreciate your financial support in Lahaina. Please, please continue to fund our
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program. It helped myself and other parents, and others to be able to work with the peace of
mind that our children is well taken care of without to worry of the...without worry of finding an
affordable childcare which their prices are listed between 700 and 1,100, you know, per tuition,
and things that I can't afford even a third of the cost. And for that, ladies and gentlemen,
members of the Council, thank you tremendously. Thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. Thank you. Susan Baillie will be followed by Kainoa Casco. Susan Baillie.
Kainoa Casco. Hmm? Oh, there he is.
MR. CASCO: Aloha, Council, good evening. Good to see you guys again. Wearing a couple hats this
evening. First is for vice president...I'm vice president on the board for Malama Maui Nui and
Community Work Day so really appreciate you guys continued support for Malama Maui Nui.
You know, I don't have to explain all of the valuable things they do for Maui Nui so really
appreciate your support for that. Second, is as a small business owner and sustainability
consultant that's working, you know, as a change agent in Hawaii for sustainability. Really
appreciate your support for the Energy Utilities Conference last week or the other week. It's
really good seeing you guys there. It's real, really good example of how to shift the needle
around energy and utilities, and it's really good to bring people together not just to complain
about issues that are wrong, but really to bring experts from around the world to develop
solutions on how to move forward and build energy sustainability in Hawaii. So really
appreciate your support for that and I really think MEDB did a really good job in organizing that.
Lastly, as a 2009 Ka Ipu Kukui fellow, I really appreciate your continued support for Ka Ipu
Kukui as a, you know, as a young professional growing up on Maui, it really led to a lot of
direct, I guess, direct success in some of the things I'm doing as a professional, and I really
support that program. So thank you very much. Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Kainoa. Second, second call for Susan Baillie.
MS. BAILLIE: Good evening, Maui Council and thank you. My name is Susan Baillie. I'm a
veterinarian, and live on the West Side, and I'm here to speak to you about the Feral Cats
Management Program. Over the past eight months, I have worked, I have spayed over 800 cats
working with nonprofit organizations in both Wailuku and Makawao. And the information that
I'm going to provide you right now is it comes from national studies and programs that have had
successful trap-neuter-release programs throughout the U.S. Trap-neuter-release programs are
the most effective method of controlling feral cat programs: however, they need to be
implemented in a high impact manner. What that means is that areas need to be targeted in order
for you to see an impact on the actual number of the cats in, you know, sustainably. If not
constructed in that manner the efforts have very little impact. A lot of cats may be spayed so the
numbers may be there, but when you look at the long-term effects it's really not making a
difference. Programs that serve large areas are very important. They do make a difference for
the individual cats but for the population as a whole, it does not have an impact. Per national
guidelines, the criteria for a successful program are: you need to have a defined target area for
measureable results, 75 percent of the cats in a targeted area need to be fixed in order for you to
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see a stabilization in the population, the defined area has to be aggressively targeted so that you
can reach that 75 percent number, outreach to the community has to also be...it's very important
and that includes education, trapping assistance, conflict resolution which there is bound to be,
and convenient access to spay/neuter facilities or services that are free to feral cats and low cost
to owned cats. And then lastly, you have to have the funding and a group of individuals who's
committed to the long-term outcome of the program. We are proposing to you that West Maui is
an ideal location for a program like this. The reason is West Maui is isolated geographically and
so the measure of success is something that is actually doable. We have the skilled people
needed that are essential in making a program like this accessible and convenient for the, for the
people on the West Side, and we are mostly a pretty close-knit and very closely housed
community here so we have a vested interest in making a program a success. West Maui
Animals is a 501(c)(3), nonprofit organization based in West Maui. It has the ability and the
commitment essential to conducting a program in a manner designed for the highest impact. Our
goal is a long-term solution that is sustainable. We fully understand the responsibility and the
accountability to both the County and to the community and if this is something that we take on,
and we will perform it with diligence. What we're requesting is let us serve as a pilot program
so that we can use nationally proven -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. BAILLIE: --techniques in conducting a successful program. Population control will not be
achieved if we try to tackle it on the whole island, but it will work if we can proceed in a targeted
manner, and with a workable plan, and with true intentionality. Last thing is we ask that you
please give West Maui consideration when distributing the funds that are allocated to the Feral
Cat Management. If the planned funds are to be allocated towards addressing the issue, we
encourage that you ensure that it's done in a manner where you will see an impact in the long
run. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Susan. Wait, we have a question for you, Susan.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ms. Baillie? Come...
CHAIR WHITE: Susan.
MS. BAILLIE: Oh, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have a question. Sorry.
MS. BAILLIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi. Thank you for being here.
MS. BAILLIE: Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so what kind of funding are you looking for?
MS. BAILLIE: It depends on how...for me, it would be $30,000 for us. With $30,000 what we could
do is we could spay or neuter 1,000 feral cats and match that with 1,000 community cats or
owned cats. You have to target both populations. You have to spay the owned cats because
that's where the problems starts and then you have to target the feral cats as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And lastly, do you have a place? Do you have an area
that you're, a facility?
MS. BAILLIE: We have...we are facilitating that right now. It's either going to be a brick and mortar
facility or it's going to be a mobile bus. And so, I mean, it's going to take probably about eight
weeks for us to have that finalized but it is definitely in the works.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Our next testifier is Pat, I'm sorry, Peg Robertson followed by
Keeaumoku Kapu.
MS. ROBERTSON: Well, first thanks for coming here tonight and thank you for all the work you do. I
know it's just the top of the iceberg that we're seeing. Anyway, I'd like to bring up a few of my
concerns. First, when will the road in Wahikuli be asphalted? You see, the County truck ruined
our Wahikuli Road about eight years ago and, and they were bashing rocks for over a year in the
lot next to us. It became kind of a County lot--who knows why but--and they've never repaired
our road so I'm still thinking, you know, I know Ainakea's been done for the buses, but I think
it'd be nice if they at least repaired the road that they damaged eight years ago when they were
moving those huge, double trucks up and down the road. Second, everyone at the pool always
asks why Lahaina Pool doesn't have solar considering other pools do. We still do not have
water, warm water in the showers yet. We have nice shower handle stuff and things like that,
and they fixed up a lot of things, but we still, I don't know why they didn't put solar in 10, 15
years ago. We did and it makes it nice and cheap, you know, you don't have to pay anything to
warm your water. Third, I still feel that Ainakea Road should get bus stops. I was told nothing
would happen this year because Napili has more riders. They have tourists up there, 30 or more
and so therefore, Ainakea's not going to get any because there's not enough people that ride.
Well, I think they would ride if they had some place to sit and someplace to not have the sun in
their face and a lot of times they drive them down to the coffee shop in the Cannery instead.
Okay, so I'm sorry to hear that our seniors that have been paying taxes for 60 years are not going
to get a bus stop. I mean, absolutely not. Maybe next year or the following year. Fourth, and
most important, the Civic Center, this Civic Center needs to be retrofitted and prepared for
certain disasters. Do any of you know if it's ready for a disaster? For instance, why shouldn't
they open them ahead of time? Why aren't there portable toilets here all the time since if there
was a disaster they'd have to close down all our "electric toilets", you know with the water
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sources and stuff. We should have portable toilets here stored someplace or whatever. Money
should be put into that. And why doesn't Anna Foust, she's head of the Defense agency in case
any of you people wanted to know her name, I'd like to her to let us people know what we would
do if there was a disaster. And if she could put something in the Lahaina News, maybe it might
be two or three articles, but explain to us where do we go besides up Lahainaluna Road. I know
that the last time some people called me in desperation from the Civic Center here and said,
please, can I come over to your house? And you know, we were kicked out of our house on
Front Street. We got back at 10 o'clock at night and a tidal wave might come in the next half
hour and we're stuck up here and there's nobody here, it's all locked up, and it's not being
used...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. ROBERTSON: Okay. A suggestion I had tonight was that you could go park at the Lahaina
Bypass. So I want to tell all of you if you need a place to go during a tidal wave, Lahaina
Bypass. Thank you, Mr. White. Last thing, the bathrooms, of course, at Wahikuli Beach Park
still look like a third world, you know, bathrooms and please, any of you, just stop in anytime,
it's right below here. If you just go straight down here and go to the restrooms, just check it out.
I mean, I've been complaining about this for over four years so I'm hoping this is the year that
they fix those. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Peg. Keeaumoku will be followed by Uilani Kapu.
MR. KAPU: Hi, aloha mai kakou.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha.
MR. KAPU: It's good to see the County Council here on the West Side. Mahalo. I'm here in the
capacity as Aha Moku 0 Maui. I'm the CO for Aha Moku 0 Maui, Inc. And I'm here to talk
about the line item on the Parks and Recreation $750,000 for the Lahaina Restoration Foundation
Capital Improvement. We've been involved in this project through the Imaginary [sic] project
which basically the funds was allocated from the County to try to find solutions for our Historic
District. One of the reasons why we actually got involved is because our historic sites in our
town is going through some serious degradation. So we seriously got involved with the Lahaina
Restoration Foundation and the Friends of the Lahaina Library to look at ways of improving our
historic sites. Viewing a lot of the plaques and panels that going educate the broader
communities like the tourists that visit this town which basically everybody assumes that this
town is the capital of tourism. Our involvement as Aha Moku 0 Maui, as well as my wife
representing Na Aikane 0 Maui Cultural Center, is the reason why it's important to us because
we slowly see that one day this town may lose its National Historic Register. So we took it upon
ourselves to really, really get involved in how we can kind of change the dynamics of the capital
of the Kingdom of Hawaii to make sure that we don't lose the precious makamae that we have.
And it's kind of interesting from myself to be standing over here and supporting something like
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this because I think Lahaina town in many ways is slowly becoming a place not for us. So the
only way we basically found solutions is to make sure that we got involved. Education is the
key. When you start educating the new people over here, yeah, then they start really
understanding why this place is Lahaina. I think that a lot of the people that live here also knows
that there's a deep underlay of history, but when you go around town all we have is signs. We
don't have the full capacity of restoring these sites to its, to its criteria to make sure that those
criteria really stick out. Under the National Historic Register, this town, yeah, is one of the key
landmarks of the State of Hawaii. Everything started here. The whole islands depend on the
coexistence of what Lahaina produced in its history, in its past. So we're involved. We gave
many recommendations to this project. We're in full support of this project and I think $750,000
is a little too squeamish. I think more $5 million should be what it should take to really restore
what Hawaii's history and makamae is all about. We have Mokuula on the other end of town is
going -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. KAPU: --through a feasibility study with the Corps of Engineers to bring back a bird sanctuary. A
bird sanctuary means there's a wrought iron fence and no people going be allowed to go there.
So I strongly, strongly emphasize the County to really support this small step, this really, really
small step to make sure that we turn this town into what it really is all about, historically,
fundamentally, culturally. And also, talking about education, to also support the many teachers
out there that have to deal with our kids. And that's what the MEO program with the Head Start
program up Lahaina, Nahienaena School. I think they really need the support. Support the
seniors, support them too. So mahalo. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Keeaumoku. And Uilani will be followed by Kimokeo Kapahulehua.
MS. KAPU: Wow, I like that move. Aloha. My name is Uilani Kapu. The reason why I like that move
is because this is all the cultural guys coming up so that's awesome to see. We're in support of
Lahaina Restoration Foundation and the library, the Friends of the Library. With this harbor
project that's happening with the library, it's going to extend around, going to the harbor, it also
benefits Hui 0 Waa Kaulua. And we've been in support of Hui 0 Waa Kaulua for years. So
that is going to happen within that area. Also it accommodates each other which its rich history,
as Keeaumoku has shared, will be brought back to life. We also work with Friends of Mokuula.
We've assisted in helping cut back all of the bushes in the park so we can get some of the
homeless out of there that people can't...can no longer walk through the park because of it. All
the opala that's left from them, their drinking and everything is not appropriate for that area. So
we've cleaned it up on our own. Our cultural center is right in that vicinity also. I call that the
Polynesian triangle because it has our cultural center which brings back its history and culture
that we provided for the schools. We have Hui 0 Waa Kaulua educating in our canoes and we
have Mokuula, the Kingdom capital. Now we're working on our harbor front. That is where
everybody ports back and forth from Lanai to Molokai and also our visitors alike, as all of you
folks know. Our senior center, our senior citizens, they do need new clothing for that. I do see
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them fading, but they do wonderful jobs there in, you know, greeting our visitors and our
families alike. So I do support MEO and as a former teacher of Head Start, I know what's it's
like to have to go in front and go for the Budget and be compatible for it but it's important only
because I've worked from 0 to 13 years old. Head Start is split up into 0 to 3, which my
granddaughter has, and she has cerebral palsy, they've assisted with her and they were able to
assist her in having her physical therapists come in and work with her and everything so they
provide everything outside of the box, not just the teachers. From 3 to 4, they educate and they
help assist in allowing those students, those kids, to prepare themselves for their real life,
elementary. That's frightening to them and it's not only that -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. KAPU: --it's also working in the homes with their parents. I remember I had to go into the homes,
introduce myself as a teacher, get to know the parents and the students. And that's important
because they need to work together in order for the student to achieve. And Head Start, you
know, it's a hats off for me, and even though they only have 30 spaces for this, we need more
Head Starts, because early education is very important. Our outside daycare facilities are not
helping the parents that are struggling. I think we should put a cap on them, because it's
ridiculous paying 700 to $800 just for a daycare, but that's just my issue with that one, but we
need more Head Start so that we can help our younger generation and mahalo all of you folks for
taking your time and coming out to Lahaina. Have a good evening.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ui. And Kimokeo will be father...followed by Katherine Kamaemae
Smith.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Good evening, Council members. My names is Kimokeo Kapahulehua and I
really appreciate you guys having to come out here and listen all of us. I came here for several
reasons. The first reason I want to talk to you about is what was just presented to you by
Keeaumoku and his wife, that we, Hui 0 Waa Kaulua, supports the Lahaina Restoration
Foundation capital request to you for 750,000, and to continue, and you have for many years, the
town itself for promoting culture and everything else. But we want to say to you that Lahaina
Restoration Foundation also held a culture slip in Lahaina Harbors for the Carthaginian, and
when the Carthaginian left they held it for Hui 0 Waa Kaulua so we appreciate that partnership
with them. But more so, that to tell you that they have had that slip for 40 years so they've
sustained they selves by doing that for the culture and now having that slip available for us, and
knowing what they're going to do with the Friends of Lahaina Library and with Keeaumoku and
his group, Friends of Mokuula and ourselves. So we really appreciate the partnership and how
we share and what we going to do together. So we definitely want you to support that Capital
Improvement, 750,000 to them. On the same event, on Parks and Recreation, just this past
weekend we held our first large rugby seven game in Maui at Keopuolani Park and we had more
than 500 young adults play, and majority of these adults came from the West side on Maui so we
want you to make sure that the Parks and Rec in Maui sustain what you have for them, and do
the improvements and everything else. I'm going to tell you a funny story that happened to us
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just recently where I was up into to see the Puu Kukui Watershed Preserve people and they said,
you know, Uncle, we going to be planting 1,000 koa trees up here. I said, really? They said,
yeah. They said, well, we need some people to plant it. So we jumped on their program and we
have their program booked until June of this year, 2014, and having to go up and volunteer to
plant koa trees and aalii so I ask you to support their program that they have over here, and also
including the West Maui Watershed. So these are things that we recently got involved with,
with the exception of Lahaina Restoration Foundation, we've been with them and they've been
helping us for a long, long time. So I ask your support on what we had before you this evening
and appreciate it very much. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Kimokeo. And Katherine will be followed by Anne Scharnhorst.
MS. SMITH: Good evening. I'm Katherine Kamaemae Smith and I testify as a Lahaina citizen, as a
Maui historian, and as a volunteer for Hui 0 Waa Kaulua, a nonprofit organization located on the
beach in Lahaina Historic District. I applaud Mayor Arakawa and the County Council for your
willingness to support all Lahaina projects, especially the IMAGINE community plan. Lahaina
Historic District and Harborfront areas need help because we host 2 million visitors every year
on one narrow stretch of real estate and Lahaina gets a lot of wear and tear. This $750,000 grant
will help Lahaina Restoration Foundation and Lahaina Library get more restoration work done
around the harbor. They're already off to really good start and $750,000 sounds like a lot of
money, but it's just a drop in the bucket as Keeaumoku said, for what needs to be really done in
the restoration of Lahaina. Lahaina is historically and prehistorically significant. It was the seat
of governance for Maui kings for eight centuries before the Kamehameha dynasty. King Hua,
Kakaalaneo, and the great Piilani ruled from Lahaina. Hawaiian navigators selected a blue
navigational star to locate the longitude of West Maui. It's Rigel in the constellation of Orion;
we see it every night. Our West Maui Mountains have individual names that are still preserved.
And in the early 19th century Lahaina was compared to Venice in Italy because of its many
wetlands and its inland water courses. Now if any one of these facts is new to you then we are
not fully communicating the...Lahaina's wonderful and unique heritage. The benefits of an
upgraded Lahaina Harborfront and Historic District obviously accrue to all of Maui County.
And I urge this Committee to recommend the IMAGINE grant and future projects, any future
project that will restore Lahaina Historic District and Hawaiian cultural sites that make us unique
in all the world. Improve the safety and access to Lahaina Harbor and Lahaina beaches for our
Maui residents and welcome visitors to a safe and engaging, and well-maintained harbor front,
and then recognize and respect this ancient Hawaiian Kingdom seat of governance. Mahalo,
thank you very much, mahalo nui loa for including this in the Budget and anything that we can
do in the future to restore Lahaina Historical District and the harbor area. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Katherine. Following Anne will be Colin Hanlon.
MS. SCHARNHORST: Aloha. I'm tired. I bet you guys are. I'm Anne Scharnhorst. I'm half a Nancy
Johnson. It's taken two of us to replace what she's done as the Department Chair for Allied
Health. So I'm testifying in support of the Allied Health expansion. We're asking 225. What
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you did for the dental program is...helped all of Maui County get better dental care and
permanent...in a permanent fashion. And we're asking to solve a problem that no one solved yet
which is the healthcare of the community as a whole. So we're proposing some roles...oh, I
wanted to tell you, Mr. Couch, we've started a little letter writing campaign, too, about the TAT
tax saying that, you know, we're trying to really take care of our own community. So what
we're proposing with this expansion grant is the maturation of a new healthcare role in the
Affordable Care Act which has a lot of names. I like the name Navigator but it has a lot of
names. But how you can take someone whose not professionally trained and doesn't cost
40 bucks an hour, to actually go in where people are living, keep 'em in their house, assess
directly under the supervision of trained personnel to really find out their needs, and be very
specific in helping 'ern stay independent and not get back in the hospital. So it hasn't been
figured out yet and I'd like to be more in the role of developing, doing that needs assessment and
developing that role than to have someone come and tell us, here's the role, do this. So we're
asking you guys for your support, and we promise that we, too, are going to turn around and help
our elders, and our kids, and everyone stay at home and be healthy, work together. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Anne. And following Colin, we will have Joe Kent.
MR. HANLON: Budget Chair White, Council members, thank you so much. I am truly grateful for the
opportunity to speak to you tonight. I tried to make sure I only do it at one community although
we have six clubhouses and in four different communities, so I'll try to keep my comments short
and if there's any questions about any particular community I can speak with you later. Lot of
great programs testifying at some of the Budget hearings I've got to be at and thank goodness
you guys have infinite funds to use to get them all funded. You do have a tough job and I do
appreciate that you'll do a good job. First and foremost, please continue to support Maui
Economic Opportunity Youth Transit. It's how my kids get to the clubs and get home. We
break down the barrier of transportation for our kids and that is one of the reasons why we are
successful. So please remember Maui Economic Opportunity Youth Transit. I'd also like to
share with you, I really do need your help this year. We met with the Mayor and his team and
asked for a slight increase this year, less than $100,000 organization-wide. For Lahaina, it's
about $23,000 increase. We did so because we have been drastically impacted by the passing of
the late Senator, and our Federal dollars that we used, are set at as leverage to become, to sort of
get a bigger seat at the table. That funding, the Federal funding did get cut in half We went
from $315,000 to $150,000. We also had a multiyear individual donor who gave, who was
giving us $215,000 a year for five years and that sunset'd last year. These create pretty major
holes, and we've actually done really well in making up some of that, some of that in the
upcoming budget, but we are going to need additional help. It didn't get into the Mayor's
Budget and we have been put in for flat funding. Basically, what that means if you take a look at
how we did our budget, part-time staff member leaves our clubs. At every one of my...every
one of these testimonies, unit directors have gotten up and shared with you what means and what
makes the difference in a kid's life; it's a staff member. It's not the building; it's not the best
practice programs; it's not even the equipment. But it is the fact that, even Danae tonight talked
about our turnover, and the fact that it is really hard to get qualified people to stay with us here in
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Lahaina because of the commute if they don't live here in Lahaina. The cost of living is slightly
higher in Lahaina so a lot of her staff members do have to hold two jobs. So again, I do need
your help. I will need a little bit of somebody to bring it up and obviously, five people to vote
for it to get that increase from the Mayor's Budget. And I would truly appreciate that. The
County of Maui is our number one partner. At the four clubs that are funded through the County
of Maui, it's 40 percent of the operating budget is provided by the County. We're in County
Parks' buildings at four of the sites.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. HANLON: And we are, we are being asked to do much more. Two years ago we served just over
4,000 kids. Last year we served just over 5,000 kids. And this year we served over 7,000 kids
we've reached. Okay. We can't continue to increase those and get a disproportionate amount of
kids in the building and remain flat or less staff. We have to have our ratios at 20 to 1 or better.
So again, we want to make sure that we're meeting the youth development needs of each
community, and I really do ask you for a little bit of assistance this year. Thank you so much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Colin. Joe will be followed by Michael Willinsky.
MR. KENT: Hi, everyone. My name is Joe Kent and I'm a teacher at King Kamehameha III
Elementary in Lahaina. I'm a music teacher and recently I've been reading the Constitution and
the Declaration of Independence. And for those that don't know, the Declaration of
Independence says that when the government gets too big, it's the responsibility of the people to
make the government smaller or abolish it. And I see the government getting bigger, and I keep
getting smaller. And my job has been cut, okay. I'm the only music teacher in a public school,
in an elementary in, on the island right now. And my job is getting cut not by the government,
but by the cost of living, and I see cost of living going up. I can't live, afford to live in Lahaina
anymore, and I can't tell how many parents have come up to me, crying, the principal crying that
I can't live here anymore. And what do I see the solution? Raise taxes. Okay, that doesn't
sound like a very good solution to me. I'm not attacking you; this is the Budget's...the Mayor's
plan, okay. And in his plan he wants to give government employees a raise. I'm a government
employee, right. He wants to give government employees a raise by raising taxes, but if he were
serious about giving people a raise, he would lower taxes not raise them. Last year, I got a pay
raise. I'm a teacher; I got a pay raise, and taxes also went up, and so guess where my pay raise
went? Right back to the government and so I didn't see a pay raise. This is what, what happens
when you raise taxes to give people raises, is the raises go back to government, and it disappears
from the people. Here's an idea. I think that we should lower taxes. I think we should lower
taxes. By lowering taxes, not just government employees but everyone would get a raise in take
home pay. And a property owner...I know that they're raising property taxes, okay, fine, I don't
pay property taxes; I rent. But guess where the property taxes go towards? They're passed on to
renters and my rent has raised to the point where I can't afford to live in Lahaina anymore. So
then you ask, so how would government be paid for, right? Well, I believe that it is time to cut.
I'm sorry to say, it is time to cut. And I ask politicians many times, where have you cut? And I
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get these tiny little answers, but we've got one the biggest governments in the United States here
in Hawaii. And I know that there's a lot -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. KENT: --of charities and nonprofits here who are asking for money. And I understand and they're
great, important needs. But I want everyone to remember that there's a cost to that and the cost
is that I can't live here anymore. And I know that some of that charity is to help kids, but the
consequence is that I have to leave the island. You could cut or you could privatize, and I
wonder if either solution has been thought of. When counties privatized across America, big
surpluses happened. There are counties across America who are, who are cutting, who are
privatizing and the result is big surpluses. Okay, so there are solutions here besides just raising
taxes, besides the same old thing. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Joe. And following Michael will be Patric Brock.
MR. WILLINSKY: Aloha, esteemed Council. My name is Michael Willinsky. Thank you for holding
these important Budget meetings throughout the County. I am very grateful for the many
wonderful things you have all accomplished in recent years and I want thank you for your
ongoing help with regards to animal welfare. For over seven years on Maui I have been an
animal welfare advocate and cat colony caretaker. There are hundreds of us in the community
that spend a great deal of their own time and their own money trying to help Maui County
humanely solve the pet overpopulation situation. We're making a big difference but we are
looking to you, Council, for a long-term solution. Last year, the County allocated SNIP funding
to the SPCA. This funding was earmarked for low cost, high quality, high volume sterilization
of both dogs and cats. The program's amazing. It's been highly successful. I have personally
brought in over 100 West Side community cats to the SPCA clinic in Wailuku to be spayed and
neutered. Some came from well-managed colonies, some were cute, adoptable kittens, and some
were people's pets and a part of their family. I want to thank you for this excellent decision,
Council, and I would encourage you to increase SNIP funding for the SPCA this year. For many
of us on the West Side, however, the 25 or 30 mile drive prevents full participation. For an even
greater impact this year, I would urge the Council's help in creating an inexpensive, dedicated
West Side veterinarian clinic that would focus on pet sterilization and public participation. We
have people in place that will assist with the long-term humane solution, but respectfully,
Council, we are going to need your help. Thank you. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Michael. Patric will be followed by Jill LaBram.
MR. BROCK: Hello. My name's Pat Brock. I'm a self-employed businessman here on Maui. And it's
my understanding that property taxes are probably going to go up 5.6 percent is what I heard,
which will probably mean that my rent will go up at least that much. ... (Clears throat)... excuse
me. I'm at a place where I'm unable to keep up with the taxes that I owe anymore so I'm not
sure what I need to do. I need to get rid of my apartment and move into a room in someone's
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house in order to continue to make a living or maybe we could just not raise taxes. Maybe we
could cut costs instead. If there are any other services that maybe Maui County could provide to
me maybe I could get some subsidy to pay my taxes. But anyway, thank you for your time and
consideration. Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Patric. Jill will be followed by Petrina Castillo.
MS. LaBRAM: Good evening, Council members. My name is Jill LaBram and I am here to give my
support for the Maui Youth Alliance. One Saturday a month, Maui Youth Alliance members
from across Maui County gather to explore a key component of our community. I was lucky
enough to be a part of one of these Saturdays. I work for the West Maui Mountains Watershed
Partnership. As an aside, thank you for your continued funding and support for watershed
partnerships. Our overall mission is the long-term protection and preservation of the West Maui
Mountains watershed. As one of our outreach efforts, we take volunteer groups out on the
Waihee Ridge Trail to learn about our watershed. On a Saturday in January, we had a small
group able to join us from the Maui Youth Alliance. Willow, Daniel, Shay and Jade. They were
very engaged and interested, and asked lots of questions. They learned about the importance of
protecting the watershed and the threats our watershed faces. Volunteer groups like the Maui
Youth Alliance hike up the trail and help to remove an invasive weed, strawberry guavas, in the
mauka areas where the native forests can recover and re-establish itself. Groups like this are
crucial to this effort and we could not do it with them, every little bit helps. Even with our small
group that day, we controlled over 200 guavas. In the future these students said they were
excited to come back to see that the native forest has healed and to say we were a part of that. It
was a beautiful day, and everyone enjoyed the hike, and the hands-on work in protecting our
watershed. Some of these students will hopefully be the next generation of conservationists on
Maui and stewards of our land. It is organizations like the Maui Youth Alliance that will help
make this possible by getting students excited and involved. The Maui Youth Alliance helps to
create well-rounded and knowledgeable students ready to pursue whatever goals in life they want
and to be important leaders in our community. These are the students that can make a difference.
Please continue to support this valuable program. I am proud that I could be a part of this
program, meet these great people, and I look forward to hosting future trips with the Maui Youth
Alliance. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, Jill. And Petrina's up next and she'll be followed by Hans
Michel.
MS. CASTILLO: Aloha, voting Members of the Budget and Finance Committee for County of Maui. It
is an honor to be here today in front of the people that have done a great job in the past at putting
our money where it needs to go. Now it's that time again to make these hard decisions with our
new Budget that was given to our community. As the money gets tighter and tighter, the price of
living and doing business gets higher and higher. Again, my name is Petrina Castillo. I'm here
on behalf of the MEO's Rental Assistance Program. I'm going to tell you a story about a
woman. This woman had all the odds against her starting at, starting at childhood by being
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raised by a single mom with six kids on welfare. Well, this woman tried very hard to break the
cycle, but because of various reasons and her low esteem at the time, she became pregnant at the
age of 16. Even so, this woman stayed in school, had an afterschool job, and even though she
herself was a single parent raising a child, a baby, she still did not give up. She graduated with a
3.8 GPA, stayed off of welfare, continued to educate herself and landed an awesome career. By
the age of 25 she was able to purchase her first home by herself. Soon after that she met a man,
found love with a man, they married and started a family. Unfortunately, he was an illegal
resident, and before they started the process of making him legal, he was arrested for being
illegal and was given a 10-year bar. So in a snap of a finger, their life as they knew it was no
longer in their control. He was deported and in that instant she became a single mom again.
Eventually, the present kicked in and she was forced to leave her career, forced to give up her
home, and along with that, no longer being financially secure and losing her good credit. As the
time passed, depression worsened, she at one point was homeless with her children. Eventually,
she moved into the only place that she could afford, and that would accept her and her children
which was in a room in a three bedroom house with no yard to play in, no privacy, and no space
to fully work on her business. The thought of saving up for a better living situation was
impossible because she couldn't put her full heart and soul into her business which put a strain
on her finances. So she started to start praying. Someone told her about an affordable rental
complex which had a waiting list. So she called, got on the list, and waited. Then one day she
got some unexpected news from her roommates. Her roommates found another place to live and
were going to leave her there to take over the rent that was $1,650. Luckily that same day she
received the call that there was a unit available, but she would need to put down a deposit and
first month's rent. Her heart sank. She thought to herself, where am I going to get that kind of
money? Luckily she was told about MEO and the Rental Assistance Program. She made an
appointment -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. CASTILLO: --as soon as she had all the required paperwork done. She was approved and received
the money that she needed. This woman that I speak of is me. Without the help of MEO's
program and the support of their staff, my family and I would have been homeless. Sorry. We
now have the space and yard that we needed. My children are happier than ever. Our quality of
living improved and I can honestly say that we owe it all to MEO and the Rental Assistance
Program that they have in place. Since then, my depression dramatically lowered which allowed
me to focus more on my business. In return, I make more money. I have been able to save
money. Part of the program required me to make goals and because of MEO and their staff,
especially, Dee, who has been there for me throughout the whole process, I am getting closer to
one of many of my goals, which is to own my own home again, and also to continue to keep
breaking the cycle, and showing my children that, you know, that's the way to go, you know.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MS. CASTILLO: Asking...so I'm asking you here today, keep funding MEO and all of their programs
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so they can continue to help others to get back on their feet, and help them attain their life goals,
and have a better quality of life. My family and I are truly grateful. Please do the right thing for
the future of our community, and again, please continue funding MEO and all of their programs,
especially the Rental Assistance Program. Mahalo and God bless. Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Petrina. And Hans will be followed by Pat Sullivan.
MR. MICHEL: Council member, thank you for coming to West Maui. I'm kind of sad. I was a
member of the GPAC for three year and I know that my transit corridor never got put in by Hunt
and neither got put in our memorial park for Lahaina. Everybody make over here, you have to
haul them to the other side. So no, it is a joke. All the graveyards are full, and we struggle hard,
the GPAC, to get them over to Puukolii where they have land maybe nearby the new hospital or
something, but all these got washed under the table. You know, I'm a citizen of West Maui for
51 years , I mean, I don't think I'm going to last another 100, maybe 20 more, but I hope by that
time you get something going. Paul, who is behind here, he tried to get the veterans involved
and they do just like anybody else, a lot of talking and no
. But we need to do something
for the West Maui citizens. They always grumble about the traffic on the Pali, well, below
economically and more simple for do things on the West Side. And the next thing is my water
problem. Victorino isn't here, why I don't know, he's the main man for that. I wish he came.
They need to change some of the pipe system up in Lahainaluna which is part of Lahaina water
system. I know they have promised and talked how they might fix. The latest I've been hear,
they drill a well outside Honokowai side for $9 million and all the installation, whatever they
need to have, but we cannot neglect the watershed up Lahainaluna. So it's up to them what they
going to do because everything is pushed, the water from Honokowai into Lahaina. If those
pipelines will break since they got put in the ground late eight...1965, '70 in there, and they are
in the middle of the highway. When they put them in it was on the shoulder. The highway got
four lane now so if anything breaks that means you have a jam on the highway. There's no place
else to go because even the highway is not finished. Just like the other item is our bypass„ not
bypass, the flood channel from Puamana connection to Lahainaluna it's all floating, and they
always say it is the State, and it is the soil conservation people have to bring the money and
whoever, you know what's, it's like a merry-go-round. Like you guys ask the State people for
the Hotel Accommodation Tax the cap, yeah, for remove.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHEL: Somebody from the State told me we need the money so we can be prosperous in the
State. So County and State and Federal seem to be cheating each other, left and right. There's
three different government in one bag by right, but they supposed to be more responsible for that,
not only try to look for themselves, look for the future of the people. And I've been here since
'63 when Royal Lahaina got built. It was not for Pioneer Mill brought in water for the hotel, for
Sheraton and Royal Lahaina. They're helping the hotel over here because the County didn't
have no waterlines. Can you imagine? And today, they like $20,000 for a hookup. That's kind
of little bit a joke because when I built my house in '73, I paid 20 bucks for hook up a water
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meter. They were glad if you could give you a meter. Today, they are punish you. Now what is
the County doing? They said, it's the cost.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MR. MICHEL: Not everybody can operate like the County. Why don't they privatize all that and then
you'll see they have to squeeze them and get things done. Now they just pound on the table and
say, give me the money or no get no meter. Anyway, that's about all I have to say. And I thank
you for coming this side, you know, because I can save my gas. I don't have to come squawk in
Wailuku. Thank you very much and have a good one.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Hans. And Pat will be followed by Paul Laub.
MR. SULLIVAN: Aloha. Good evening, Council members and we've had a lot of terrific testimony
tonight and mine's just a small part that kind of follows what Hans was talking about. But,
we've lived on Wainee Street, I live at 554 Wainee Street, and my dad whose 91 lives at
550 Wainee, which is right across from the Hongwanji church and the Waiola Church, and in
1972 we got flooded, and in 1991 we got flooded, and in 2002 we got flooded. And so I took
pictures this morning of the, of the Aquatic Center retention basin and it looks like we've got two
pools at the Lahaina Aquatic Center. I have talked to David Goode and he said he would talk to
the Parks Department because it's their responsibility for that basin so I'm not sure if he's going
to be able to do anything about it, but he's been asked on numerous occasions by me about
having to deal with the retention basin, and nothing has gotten done because we haven't had any
rain since 2002. So because we haven't had any rain, there's been no attention to this problem,
but it does come across the street. There's three 24 inch lines that come from the retention basin
that are owned by the State and so what I'd like to request of the Council is that there's some
kind of budgetary expense for taking care of the retention basin. Back in 2003 when Front Street
was constructed, when they did the drainage problems in Lahaina, they dumped the concrete and
residue in the retention basin, and then after that they also, for the Taste of Lahaina, put a bunch
of gravel in there so it doesn't percolate at all. And so if you go by there today, you'll see it.
I've got a laptop where you can see the pictures that I've got here, but from this, from our
standpoint, I think the Church and all the neighbors in that neighborhood would greatly
appreciate that retention basin actually retaining water then using it as a pool, a secondary pool.
Anyway, thank you so much. Bye.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Pat. And following Paul will be Theo Morrison.
MR. LAUB: Aloha mai kakou. I'm Paul Laub and by the way, Pat's dad is one of the last living heroes
to parachute in, on D-Day, into France. I have some really good news and that is most people
think that the water that goes into the sewers drains into the, into the wastewater system but it
does not. It all goes into the ocean and this has been polluting our ocean and our reef for a long
time. What we have now available are, what I call "scrubbers" and other people call "collection
basins", and some are being installed right now to ascertain how much energy, time, and effort
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it's going to take to keep 'em clean 'cause once installed they have to be cleaned, and it's a
function of maintenance. I'm here to ask you to help fund the Public Works Department to get
this done and it's going to cost money. It's going to cost...we're going to have vacuum trucks,
and we're going to have to have employees cleaning this out, but it can, and will make a very
large difference. One easy thing that can be done is that signs can be painted, used to have 'ern,
no longer there, that say "flows to the ocean, please no dumping". That would be great. And
one other little thing. I did have an opportunity to speak with State Chairman of the Ways and
Means Committee and gubernatorial candidate about the TAT tax and I did express how
extremely important that was to us, all of us. And the last thing is, we are trying to get a veterans
and a civilian cemetery through Kaanapali 2020 when they do their project. So I thank you very
much for your assistance in all these matters. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Paul. Theo will be followed by Pomaikai Kaniaupio-Crozier.
MS. MORRISON: Aloha, Budget Chair Mike White, Council Chair Gladys Baisa, and Council
members. My name is Theo Morrison and I'm the executive director of Lahaina Restoration
Foundation. You've heard from many members of the community tonight who have spoken in
favor of the 750,000 grant that the Mayor included in his proposed Budget for the improvements
that Lahaina Harborfront area and the parks next to the Lahaina Public Library. The community
met for a period of nine months to develop this conceptual plan for this area and the community
will be involved throughout the implementation process if this grant is funded. We recognize
that this important, historical, and cultural area is overrun, trashed, and unkempt, and it is getting
worse by the day. We are committed to changing that. Over the past 52 years, Lahaina
Restoration Foundation has been successfully restoring Lahaina's historic and cultural sites and
buildings often in partnership with the County of Maui. LRF has the experience, expertise, and
knowledge to complete this project with a full involvement and participation of the community
This project is in the heart of the Historic District and it is in the heart of this community. We
urge you to support this grant so this community can stand proud among the taro patches, look
proudly at the Hawaiian canoe moored nearby, and bring back the respect and reverence that this
area has lost. We also urge you to support funding for the seniors entertainment on Boat Days.
Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Theo. And following Pomaikai we'll have Susana Arvizo.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: ... (Speaks in Hawaiian)... Before I give my testimony, I'd like to really
say mahalo to all of you. Taking time away from your families, drive all the way over here
during the rain so that it can be accessible to community. Mahalo nui. I'd like to...my name is
Pomaikai Kaniaupio-Crozier and I'm the Puu Kukui Watershed Preserve manager. And I'd like
to mahalo you folks for supporting us and ask for your continuous support. Puu Kukui
watershed is a beautiful place. We feel very humbled every time we get to go up into the forest
and see how fragile it is, and know that we're privileged to have that job. What we see is
everybody's screensaver. Everybody wants to look at it, everybody wants to save the watershed
and we're privileged to get to see that. But beyond the privilege is a big kuleana because we
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know everybody below us depends on that watershed being intact. Today was a wet day.
Everybody is huddled away, staying dry, you know, making sure we running with our umbrellas
to and from the car. We got three inches of rain today. Puu Kukui watershed has gotten close to
100 inches of rain just since February. On March 2211d, we got 25 inches of rain in a two day
period. Could you imagine the rain today going on for 30 days straight? If you didn't that
pristine forest up there, you want to talk money, real money, cleaning up basins, ridge to reef
saving coral reef, floods, hazard, destruction road. A hundred inches of rain, praise God, you
know. When we look at the
and
, my kupuna, they all would say ...(speaks in
Hawaiian)... and we hear that through Jerry Santos kind of gets beaten over saving the water, but
they would also say... (speaks in Hawaiian)...that in Genesis that all the rains under the heavens
be gathered in one place. Puu Kukui watershed and Puu Kukui is the second wettest spot on
Earth. We have more water than the Amazon. Liquid gold, right? So when lot of us are talking
about what should we do, hey, I need water, you need to do this, you need to do fix, you
need...we're into the business of catching it. Before we can talk about dispersing it, we need to
make sure that we malama that precious resource so that everybody drink water, everybody flush
toilet, everybody...the hihiwai and the oopu, the lo'i, everything is in place and we feel blessed.
I thank you folks 'cause you have a hard job deciding where funds are going to be. A difficult
task for me was getting these bruddahs all cleaned up, in orange, and come to one County
Council meeting. These are the guys when it's three inches of rain, they're out in their rain gear
every day. They'll walk an average of 8 to 10 miles a day. On an average day like this, they're
going to camp four days in the mountain, away from their families so that everybody can have
clean, fresh water. And there's many other good efforts. So I thank you folks for your support.
I ask for your guys' continuous support. I always want to echo too, what Keeaumoku and ohana
has been saying, makai...this morning I was done at the waa
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. KANIAUPIO-CROZIER: --and e kala mai and we were looking at how we could salvage a few
pieces of koa to support the waa. It may just be a branch, but it's always all of us in the
Ahupua'a looking from mauka to makai, how we can kako'o. I also want to support MEO. In
hearing that testimony about the family, terrific. There are families that really need that kind of
assistance, you know, and sometimes we forget those who are less fortunate out there. And
lastly, I'd like to say a
, a big shout-out for Ka Ipu Kukui, which has nothing to do with
Puu Kukui, but Kainoa was up here earlier and I had the privilege to be part of that. It was a
wonderful experience. Got to go to places and see a different aspect and a different view that
helped to shape decision-making in the tough situations you guys are. Is it this or that? Oh, I
don't want to make a decision, but you got to. So I thank you guys for taking time. ... (Speaks in
Hawaiian)... Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Pomaikai. And Susana will be followed by Steven Ashfield.
MS. ARVIZO: Good evening. Okay. I've asked them to stay with me so we all one group, one team.
It's a privilege to be here tonight in front of you at this great, great meeting, and team that is in
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front of us. My name is Susana Arvizo. I'm part of this beautiful resident of Lahaina, 1986, so I
consider this my home. I'm originally Spanish or from Mexico. And I want, I'm talk...speaking
in behalf of MEO. It's a great program, different branches. And I hear all the different
testimonies about it, about transportation, and helping families. But I want to talk specifically
for this Spanish community that they're helping. It's called Enlace Latino [sic] and it's been
helping a lot for helping families. Sometimes they go through deportation or helping translating
documents or for immigration purposes or many other things that not just Hispanic, but a lot of
immigrants, maybe, I don't know, Philippines and other, you know, categories. But I'm really,
really happy that this is happening and...because it's just hard to see people when someone
that's less fortunate. You see families tear apart or leaving childrens [sic] behind or sad when
you see someone not understanding the language and being mistreated. And MEO has been
strong department in the Hispanic community and I just want to thank you in representing these
people here. Their families went through situations like that and we're just happy. We're happy
that they're being helped, and I think this is growing, and the department is also getting help
through you guys, you know, this cut budget, taxes, portions, and it's just, there's no word to say
exactly the thanks, thank to God first, and to all of you, and that's it pretty much. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Susana. And Steven will be followed by Bronson Kaahui.
MR. ASHFIELD: Aloha. Steve Ashfield, happily retired employee of the County of Maui. Okay. I'm
talking about recycling. Once upon a time, we had three recycling centers in Lahaina.
January 31st, Lahainaluna Road closed. April 1st, which I thought was an April Fools' joke,
Napili closed, but they closed that on the 29m. I talked to Hana Steel and she said Waiehu, which
closed in, on East Maui, they have money from that left over and maybe we can get Lahainaluna
open again. I gave Councilman Cochran these petitions were done by the people down at the
redemption center at Lahainaluna Road, and about 300 people signed for it. This will save us
money in the long run because you won't have to be able to put all the stuff in the, in the landfill
and hopefully it'd close it faster. There's no reason not to recycle something so I don't know
what's happening, how we could try to do it. The next thing is about, which I harp on every
year, you remember Mr. Buck, John Buck was a Deputy Director of Parks and Recreation about
10 years ago, he said to open this place cost about $200. We charge the people 80 that means,
you give $120 or the Parks Department give $120 every time this place is used 200 times a year.
So that's $24,000 just here. Okay. Last thing is Parks and Recreation, I see that the Central
Maui is getting a whole brand new park with eight ball fields and
and everybody's
screaming about it 'cause they don't want lights on and stuff like that. What we have here in
Lahaina, our facilities, we have two Little League fields, undersized. They're not the size that
the Little League fields they're supposed to be. We have one full size soccer field, which turns
into three baseball fields during the baseball season so we have no soccer fields, except the small
75-foot one up in Napili and nobody wants to go to. We have one football field. We have one
regular size softball field and one softball field that nobody can really use because they have
to...it's too small. We have two little tiny fields for the girls to play softball on so we could
certainly use some more stuff over here if something happens that we could use. That would be
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really a good thing And then about, you know, bathrooms and that stuff being done, stuff is
being worked on I've heard. That, the stuff is just old. And hopefully sometime the Parks and
Recreation will look at the West Maui instead of looking at Central all the time because we seem
to need some more stuff over here for our kids to play. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Steven. Bronson will be followed by Kalapana Kollars. Bronson Kaahui.
He must have gone. And Kalapana Kollars, Kollars.
MR. KOLLARS: Aloha mai kakou.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha.
MR. KOLLARS: Good evening and thank you for allowing me time to share some manao with you
guys this evening and thank you for staying around for as long as it takes for people to share
their manao with you. Again, my name is Kalapana Kollars and I come before you tonight to ask
for your continued support for an organization called Ka Ohana 0 Kalaupapa. They are
proposing to build a memorial on the peninsula of Makanalua on the Kalawao side in memory of
the almost 8,000 people that are buried there but have no place, no headstones. There, as I said
there's almost 8,000 people that are in the ground over there and there about not even 1,000
gravestones that are, that are readable. A good number of these were wiped out in the tsunami of
'46 as well. My coming before you tonight is not just for this organization but it's also on behalf
of my ohana. I have three generations of my ohana that are buried there and I brought one of
them along with me tonight. ...(Speaks in Hawaiian)... This is my great-great grandfather,
, who has had Hansen's, what is now called Hansen's Disease and he, his mother is
Louie
buried there, his wife is buried there, and three of his six children that were born in the settlement
are also...that died at a young age are also in the ground over there. And I, just like many other
descendants of patients there, you know, you go there and you look like you going find the pot of
gold at the end of the rainbow, and like the many people... (clears throat)... excuse me, that go
there, unfortunately they do not have this result. And so it's very rare that people are able to find
the headstone of their kupuna. So Kalaupapa, Ka Ohana 0 Kalaupapa is proposing to, I think,
get funding this year for the Fiscal Year 2015 for the design and implementation of this
memorial and I think it is a very important thing to have, not just for Maui Nui and for, you
know, this archipelago, but for the world. It's a very special place. And there are many
countless people that come after me that will benefit from having this so they can have that
connection and see their kupuna. So mahalo for affording me this time this evening to share with
you and have a wonderful evening Aloha.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Kalapana. Kalapana was the last person to set up, or to sign up for
testimony. Is there anyone else here who has not yet testified that would like to do so? Seeing
no one come forward, without objection, we'll close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR WHITE: I want to thank all of you for sticking it out through the evening with us and sharing
your thoughts and concerns, and believe me, this is going to be a challenging Budget. We have
significant tax increases. We also have significant wage and salary increases for County
employees. So it's going to be a difficult balancing act, but we are up for the task and we'll be
hard at work over the next three and a half weeks to get it done and keep moving along. So,
thank you again for being here this evening and aloha. . . . (gavel).. .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 8:27 p.m.

APPROVED:

MIKE WHITE, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min: 140407-westmaui:jz

Transcribed by: Julie Zaner
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